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DECI SI ON
Servi ce Enpl oyees International Union, Local 22, AFL-CIO
(hereafter SEIU) appeals from the attached hearing officer's
reconmended decision dismssing the unfair practice charges
filed by SEIU against R o Linda Union School District
(hereafter District) and California School Enpl oyees
Associ ation, Chapter 290 (hereafter CSEA) .-



On Decenber

3¢

FACTS
1976 and January 7, 1977, SEIU filed an

unfair practice charge and consolidated particul arized

statenent of charge, respectively, against the District

alleging that the District violated section 3543.5(a), (b)

and (d) of the Educational Enploynent Rel ations Act 1

(hereafter EERA)

classified unit

by voluntarily recognizing CSEA in a

at

a time when CSEA and SEIU were conpeting for

the support of enployees in the unit. On Decenber 21, 1976,

SEIU filed an unfair practice charge against CSEA all eging that

'Gover nnent

Code section 3540 et seq. Al statutory
references hereafter are to the Government Code.

Section 3543.5 provides:

It shall be unlawful for a public school
enpl oyer to:
(a) Inpose or threaten to inpose reprisals

on enpl oyees, to discrimnate or threaten to
di scri m nate agai nst enpl oyees, or otherw se
tointerfere wwth, restrain, or coerce

enpl oyees because of their exercise of
rights guaranteed by this chapter.

(b) Deny to enployee organizations rights
guaranteed to them by this chapter.

(d)

Dom nate or interfere with the

Ld - - - - - - - » L4 L] L

formation or adm nistration of any enpl oyee
organi zation or contribute financial or

ot her support to it, or in any way encourage
enpl oyees to join any organization in
preference to another....



CSEA viol ated section 3543.6(a) and (b)? by seeking and
accepting voluntary recognition in the same unit at a time when
CSEA and SEIU were conpeting for the support of enployees in
the unit. Both charges were based upon the follow ng facts.

In early April 1976, CSEA filed a request for recognition
with the District for a unit of all classified enpl oyees,
excl udi ng managenent, supervisory and confidential enployees,
and certain other limted cl asses.

In late April 1976, SEIU filed an intervening request with
the District seeking recognition in an "operations" unit
conposed of the four job classifications of custodian,
war ehouseman, gardener and gardener/bus driver. This unit
i ncluded approximately 50 of the District's approximtely 310
classified enpl oyees.

On May 11, 1976, the District notified the Public

Enpl oynent Rel ations Board (hereafter Board) pursuant to

’Section 3543.6 provides:

It shall be unlawful for an enployee
organi zation to:

(a) Cause or attenpt to cause a public
school enployer to violate Section 3543.5.

(b) Inpose or threaten to inpose reprisals
on enployees, to discrimnate or threaten to
di scrim nate agai nst enpl oyees, or otherw se
tointerfere with, restrain, or coerce

enpl oyees because of their exercise of
rights guaranteed by this chapter....



section 3544.1°% and emergency rule 30022% that it (1) did
not doubt the appropriateness of the unit sought by CSEA, (2)
did doubt the appropriateness of the unit sought by SEIU, and
(3) did not desire a representation el ection.

Under Board procedure, the unit dispute resulting fromthe

two enpl oyee organi zation petitions required the Board to

3Section 3544.1 provides:

The public school enployer shall grant a request
for recognition filed pursuant to Section 3544 unless:

(a) The public school enployer desires that
representation election be conducted or doubts the
appropriateness of a unit. |f the public schoo

enpl oyer desires a representation election, the
question of representation shall be deemed to exist
and the public school enployer shall notify the board,
which shall conduct a representation election pursuant
to Section 3544.7, unless subdivision (c) or (d)

apply; or

(b)  Another enployee organization either files with
the public school enployer a challenge to the
aPproprlateness of the unit or submts a conPeting
claim of representation within 15 workdays of the
postln% of notice of the witten request. The claim
shal | be evidenced by current dues deductions

aut horizations or other evidence such as notarized
membership lists, or membership cards, or petitions
signed by enployees in the unit indicating their
desire to be represented by the organization... |[f
the claimis evidenced by the support of at |east 30
percent of the members of an a?Fropriate unit, a
question of representation shall be deemed to exist
an the board shall conduct a representation

el ection....

~"Board energency rule 30022, codified at California
Adm nistrative Code, title 8, section 30022, provided at the
time in question:

Notice of Enployer Decision. Wthin 30
calendar days, or at the end of the 15
wor kday notice - posting period, whichever




conduct a hearing to determne the appropriate unit or units
for negotiating.
SEIU continued to organize the District's classified

enpl oyees after the District's notice to the Board. Then on

is the longer period, the public schoo
enpl oyer shall, in witing, notify the
appropriate regional office of the foll ow ng:

(a) \Whether or not the enployer doubts the
appropriateness of the unit described in the
request for recognition;

(b) Whether or not the enployer contests
the showing of majority support of the

enpl oyee organi zation filing the request for
recognition;

(c) \Wether during the 15 workday posting
period described in Section 30015, any
enpl oyee organi zation filed an intervention;

(d) Whether the enployer desires a
representation election.

Currently in effect, rules 33190 and 33200 pertain to notice of
the enployer's decision. Rule 33190 provides:

Enpl oyer Deci si on Regardi ng Request for
Recognition and Intervention (' Fornat A' or
"Format B"). Wthin 10 cal endar days
followmng receipt of the Regional D rector's
determ nation of adequacy of show ng of
support, the enployer shall file a decision
wth the regional office using either

"Format A" or "Format B."...

(a) The enployer shall use "Format A" if it
has granted voluntary recognition pursuant
to section 3544 and 3544.1 of the Act....

(b) The enployer shall use "Format B" if it
has not granted voluntary recognition. A
request for a representation hearing to
resolve a unit dispute nmay be raised by
"Format B' or by the enployer filing a
subsequent petition pursuant to

section 33220. ...



Cct ober 21, 1976, SEIU filed an application with the Board
pursuant to rule 33340° requesting to expand its

participation at the unit determ nation hearing to propose and

Rul e 33200 provides:

Enpl oyer Decision Re Enployee Petition for
Representation Election and Intervention
("Format_C"). Wthin 10 calendar days
followmng the receipt of the Regiona
Director’'s determ nation on show ng of
support the enployer shall file a decision
with the regional office using "Format C. "
A request for a representation hearin% to
resolve a unit disgute may be raised by
"Format C' or by the enployer filing a
subsequent petition pursuant to

section 33220....

5cal. Admin. Code, tit. 8, sec. 33340 provided at the
time in question
Application To Join Hearing As A Party. The
Board may allow an enployee organization
which did not file a tinely request for
recognition or intervention to join the
hearing as a party provided:

(a) The enployee organization files a
written application prior to the
commencenent of the hearing stating facts
showing that it has an interest in the unit
described in the request for recognition or
an intervention; and

(b) The application is acconpanied by proof
of the support of at |east one enployee in
the unit described by the request or

i ntervention; and

(c) The Board determ nes that the enployee
organi zation has a substantial interest In
the case and will not unduly inpede the
proceedi ng.

The simlar rule currently in effect is 32165:

Application to Join Hearing as a Linted

Party.  In a representatfon proceedrng the
Boar% agent may allow any person, enployer,
or enployee organization which did not file




present evidence regarding a skilled crafts/maintenance unit, a
food services unit and a transportation unit.

On Cctober 27, 1976, the Board issued a notice that the
hearing would be held on Novenber 22, 1976.

In the few days imedi ately prior to the hearing the
parties explored the possibility of a consent agreenment. SEIU
refused to agree to CSEA' s proposal that a consent election be
held in the operations unit for which SEIU originally
petitioned and that CSEA be given voluntary recognition for the
remai nder of the enpl oyees covered by CSEA s petition.

When agreenent was not reached anmong all three parties, on
Novenber 19, CSEA filed an anmended request for recognition with
the District which deleted the job classifications for which
SEIU had petitioned. At a special D strict governing board
nmeeting held on Saturday, Novenber 20, the District gave
voluntary recognition to CSEA for the unit specified in its
amended request for recognition.

On Novenber 22, the parties attended the Board hearing and
informed the hearing officer of the voluntary recognition.

CSEA then proposed that the hearing officer bring the parties
together to conduct a consent election in the remnaining

operations unit. SEIU refused and indicated its intent to file

a tinely request for recognition,
intervention or petition to join the hearing
as a limted party provided:

(a) The person, enployer, or enployee
organi zation files a witten application
prior to the commencenent of the hearing



with the Board the present unfair practice charges based on the
voluntary recognition. The hearing officer did not open the
record and submtted the case to the regional director.

As of March 2 and 3, 1977, when the hearing on the unfair
practice charges was held, no request had been nmade by SEIU for
voluntary recognition in the operations unit. No consent
el ection agreenent had been requested. CSEA and the District
had executed a contract which extended its benefits to all
classified enployees except those in SEIU s proposed operations
unit.

DI SCUSSI ON

SEIU alleges that the District commtted an unfair practice
by voluntarily recognizing CSEA at a tinme when SEl U was
conpeting for the support of enployees in the recognized unit.
SEIU all eges CSEA commtted an unfair practice by seeking and
accepting the voluntary recognition.

In deciding the issues in this case, the Board again notes

the change in policy recently articulated in Centinela Valley

Uni on H gh School D strict.% That case stated that the

Board's policy in the past has been to accept w thout question

the stipulations of parties regarding unit conposition, so |long

stating facts showing that it has an
interest in the proceedi ngs; and

(b) The Board agent determ nes that the
person, enployee organi zation or enpl oyer
has a substantial interest in the case and
will not unduly inpede the proceeding...

(8/7/78) PERB Decision No. 62.



as the stipulations are "not inconsistent with a clear and
specific mandate in the unit criteria provisions" of the
EERAfP Encour agi ng agreenent anong the parties was a neans
of expediting represenation elections. Also, the policy was
adopt ed because the Board itself had not yet devel oped any
policies interpreting and applying the EERA s unit

determ nation criteria.

Centinela went on to state that in the past two years the
Board itself has decided many disputed unit determ nation cases
and has devel oped certain policies in applying section 3545.
It then stated:

Henceforth, when [the Board] has
jurisdiction in a representation case, it
w Il examne stipulations between the
parties to determne if the stipulations are
i nconsistent with the EERA or established
Board policies. Established Board policies
are those which the Board has devel oped and
consistently foll owed.

This holding in Centinela is sinply a restatenent of rule
33000, which provides:

Vol untary Resol ution of Di sputes. It is the
policy of the Board to encourage the persons
covered by the Act to resolve questions of
representati on by agreenent anong

t hensel ves, provided such agreenent is not

i nconsistent with the purposes and policies
of the Act and the Board. (Enphasi s added.)

Thus as policies of the Board are devel oped, the parties in
future stipulations should conform to such policies. This does

not nmean that parties nust abandon stipul ati ons upon which they

Id. at pp. 2 and 3; Tamalpais Union Hgh School District
(7/20/ 76) EERB Decision No. 1.



have already agreed and acted. However, if the Board has
jurisdiction in a representation case, past stipulations of the
parties are open to Board scrutiny. Representation cases for
the purposes of Centinela and this decision are those in which
there is a di spute as to the appropriateness of the unit.

SEIU s intervention invoked the Board's jurisdiction
because it placed the appropriate unit issue into dispute.
Under section 3544.1(b),® when a conpeting claim also known
as an intervention, is filed, the enployer is precluded from
granting voluntary recognition to another enployee organization
and nust notify the Board of the intervention. The Board has
the power and duty under section 3541.3(a) "To determine in
di sputed cases, or otherw se approve, appropriate units."

The four job classifications for which SEIU petitioned are

anmong those which the Board, beginning with Sweetwater Union

H gh School District,? has generally placed in an
operati ons-support services unit. Thus the intervention raised
a question of representation about all the operations-support

servicesenployees.1010

8Section 3544.1(b) is quoted supra at note 3.

9(11/23/76) EERB Decision No. 4. See also Frenont
Uni fied School District (12/16/76) EERB Decision No. 6,
San Drego Unified School District (2/18/77) EERB Decision
No. 8; Antioch Unified School District (11/7/77) EERB Decision
No. 37.

10phis case is di stingui shed from Hartnel |l Conmunity
Col | ege District (6/5/78) PERB Decision No. 54 in which the
charging party tailed to file an intervention or otherw se
raise a question of representation concerning the unit in which
the voluntary recognition occurred.

10



In this case, after the intervention was filed the District
and CSEA stipulated to the voluntary recognition of CSEA in a
unit consisting of basically all classified enpl oyees,
excluding the four job classifications of custodian,
war ehouseman, gardener and gardener/bus driver. The Board has
never found such a unit to be appropriate. The unit does not
conformto the instructional aides (paraprofessional),
oper ati ons-support services and office-technical and business
services units the Board has generally found appropriate. The
unit also divides the operations-support services enpl oyees.

For these reasons, the voluntary recognition should not have
covered only a portion of the operations-support services
enpl oyees and excluded the other portion.

The Board finds that the hearing officers and regiona
directors should in the future, when the Board has jurisdiction
in a representation case, not approve a vaoluntary recognition
to which the parties wish to stipulate if the unit does not
conform to established Board policy. In such a situation, the
Board should investigate by obtaining stipulations of fact or
hold a hearing to determ ne the appropriateness of the unit in
which the voluntary recognition wll occur.

The Board does not deci de whether the conduct of the
District and CSEA was |awful. The conduct occurred pursuant to
the Board's old policy on voluntary recognitions and ot her
stipulations. Centinela and this decision have articulated a
new policy which shall apply in the future. Thus a decision on

the | awful ness of the conduct would serve no purpose.

11



REMEDY

In this case, the result of following the old policy was a
voluntary recognition in an apparently inappropriate unit and a
group of approximately 50 enployees who have renai ned
unrepresented. In order to renedy this situation, the Board
finds it necessary to remand this case to the executive
director who shall conduct a unit determnation hearing to
determ ne the appropriate unit or units for negotiating.ll

Pursuant to its intervention, SEIU may participate at the
hearing with regard to the unit placenent of the
oper ati ons-support services enpl oyees. It may al so make an
application pursuant to rule 32165 to further participate at
the hearing wth regard to the other enployees in issue as a
result of CSEA' s petition. SEIU s previous application to join
the hearing as a party pursuant to old rule 33340 is no |onger
effective because that rule in no longer in effect.

Any contract presently in effect between the District and
CSEA covering the unit in which CSEA was voluntarily recognized
shall continue in effect unless and until there is fina
determ nation by the Board that the unit is inappropriate, or

until the contract expires, whichever occurs sooner.

“The Board finds that the remand is the proper action to
be taken in this case. Rule 32320 provides:

(a) The Board itself may:

(1) Issue a decision based upon the record of
hearing, or

(2 Affirm nodify or reverse the proposed deci sion,
order the record reopened for the taking of further
evi dence, or take such other action as_it considers

proper.... (Enphasi s added.)
12




ORDER

Upon the foregoing Decision and the entire record in this
case, the Public Employment Relations Board ORDERS that:

1. This case is remanded to the executive director who
shall conduct a unit determination hearing to determine the
appropriate classified unit or units for negotiating.

2. Any contract presently in effect between the District
and CSEA covering the unit in which CSEA was voluntarily
recognized shall continue in effect unless and until there is
a final determination by the Board that the unit is
inappropriate, or until the contract expires, whichever occurs

SOO0Iler.

m/aymond i i .Gonz(ales,' Member Harr} Gluck, Chairperson
Jerilou Cossack Twohey, Member, dissenting:

I disagree with my colleagues that Rio Linda can be dealt
with as a representation case and disposed of under
Centinela1 withéut any consideration of the underlying unfair
practice charges that brought this case before the board in the
first place. Because this is an unfair practice case,

Centinela is inapplicable. There we found that " [h]enceforth,

when [the Board] has jurisdiction in a representation case, it

'‘Centinela Valley Union High School District (8/7/78)
PERB Decision No. 62.

13



will examne stipulations between the parties to determne if

the stipulations are inconsistent with the EERA or established
2

Board policies.” | do not believe that Board Rul e 32320°

Is so elastic that it can strip the Board of its statutory duty
"[t]o investigate unfair practice charges or alleged violations
of this chapter, and take such action and make such

determ nations in respect of such charges or alleged violations

as the board deens necessary to effectuate the policies of this
4
chapter.” After all, the Board's rule-making authority is

desigged by statute to expedite the adm nistration of the
EERA, not to stand as a stunmbling block between public
school enmployees and their right "to Selfect one enployee
organi zation as the exclusi%e representative of the enployees

in an appropriate unit,..."

’ld. at 4 (enphasis added).

%Board Rule 32320 provides that when exceptions to a
Board Agent Decision are filed with the Board:

"(a) The Board itself may:

(1) Issue a decision based upon the record
of hearing, or

(2) Affirm nmodify or reverse the proposed
deci sion, order the record reopened for
the taking of further evidence, or take
such other action as it considers
proper."

*Section 3541.3(i).

®Section 3541.3(g) gives the Board the power and duty
“[t]o adopt ... rules and regulations to carry out the
provisions and effectuate the purposes and policies of this
chapter.” (Enphasis added.)

6Secti on 3540.
14



The critical issue presented by Rio Linda is not whether
the District voluntarily recognized an appropriate or an
i nappropriate unit, but whether CSEA and the District violated
the EERA by agreeing on any unit at all in the face of known
conpeting representational clainms by SEIU.  The majority found
that SEIU raised a question of the representation only of all
oper ati ons-support services enployees, and only by virtue of
its tinely intervention pursuant to section 3544.1(b)77
seeking recognition in four operations-support job
classifications. The majority's remand of this case to the
executive director for a unit determnation hearing may result

in SEIUs vindication, since at that hearing SEIU may apply for

expanded recognition under Board rules 32165 and 32166.8%"

‘Section 3544.1(b) provides in pertinent part:

The public school enployer shall grant a
request for recognition filed pursuant to
Section 3544 unl ess:

k¥ 8 % ¥

(b) Anot her enpl oyee organi zation
either files with the public school enployer
a challenge to the appropriateness of the
unit or submts a conpeting claim of
representation within 15 workdays of the
posting of notice of the witten request.

8Board Rul e 32165 provides that:

In a representation proceeding the Board
agent nmay allow any person, enployer, or

enpl oyee organi zation which did not file a
tinmely request for recognition, intervention
or petition to join the hearing as a limted
party provided:

(a) The person, enployer, or enployee
organi zation files a witten application

15 (cont.)



SEIUs ability to obtain relief from PERB should not depend
g

upon CSEA's mistaken application of Board Rule 33100,°

however. For it is clear that under the majority's

prior to the comencement of the hearing
stating facts showing that it has an
interest in the proceedings; and

(b) The Board agent determ nes that the
erson, enployee organization or enployer
as a substantial interest in the case and
will not unduly inpede the proceeding

The Board agent may grant participation
in the hearing which shall be limted to the
right to make an oral statenment on the
record and to file a witten brief subject
to such conditions as may be prescribed.

Board Rule 32166 provides that:

An enpl oyee organization may be allowed to
participate in a representation hearing
provi ded:

(a) it has filed a witten application;
and

(b) the Board agent determ nes that the
organi zation has 10 ﬁercent_support in a
unit in dispute at the hearing; and

(c) the Board agent determ nes that the
organi zation wi |l not unduly inpede the
hearing; and

(d) this participation is limted to
di scussion of issues raised by the petition,
response thereto, or question of
representation

Board Rule 33100 provides in pertinent part:

(a) A request for recognition or
intervention may be amended to correct technical
errors or to delete job descriptions from the
proposed unit at any time prior to the
commencenment of a representation hearing.
(Emphasi s added.)

16



construction of the EERA and the Board's rules, if CSEA had
deleted all operations-support service job classifications from
the unit it sought, any question of representation would have
been summarily resolved. In other words, by shrewd
mani pul ati on of Board Rule 33100, CSEA could have forecl osed

PERB consi deration of SEIU s claimof expanded support.

10

As | expressed in ny dissent in Hartnell, and reiterate

here, the EERA provides for two ways in which questions of
representation can be raised. Under section 3544.1(b), SEIU s
intervention raised a question of representation. In addition,
the District and SEIU both requested PERB to schedule a
representation hearing.11 According to section 3544.7(a), in

pertinent part:

(a) Upon receipt of a petition filed
pursuant to Section 3544.3 or 3544.5, the
board shall conduct such inquiries and

i nvestigations or hold such hearings as it
shal | deem necessary in order to decide the
guestions raised by the petition. The
determ nation of that board may be based
upon the evidence adduced in the inquiries,
i nvestigations, or hearing; provided that,
if the board finds on the baSis of Thé

€vi dence that —a question of representati on
€eXists, Orf a quesTion of Tepresentation IS
geemed to exist pursuant to subdivision (a)
or (b) of Section 3544.1, it shall order
that an election shall be conducted by
secret ballot and it shall certify the
results of the election on the basis of

whi ch ballot choice received a majority of
the valid votes cast. ... (Enphasi s added.)

YHartnel | Conmunity College District (6/5/78) PERB
Deci sion No. 54.

1On May 24, 1976, SEIU requested by letter that PERB
schedul e a representation hearing. The District also requested
a representation hearing on October 20, 1976.

17



A question of representation exists when two or nore rival
enpl oyee organi zations claimthe support of enployees in the
sane or overlapping units. A long line of NLRB cases follow

the principle established in Mdwest Piping and Supply 0. 1212

that an enployer confronted with conflicting representational
clainms nust remain neutral until the question is resolved by
the procedures provided by statute.]13 The NLRB does not

require the filing of petitions to create a question of

representatl‘on,14 nor is any nunerical percentage of support

required to raise this question.15

In fact, the sole requirenent necessary to
rai se a question concerning representation
within the nmeaning of the M dwest Piping
doctrine...is that the clains of the riva
union nust not be clearly unsupportable and
|l acking in substance.®

As articulated by the NLRB in Belleville News Denocrat,

I nc. :

1201945) 63 NLRB 1060, 17 LRRM 40.

131d. at 1070. See also e.g. Turbodyne Corp. (1976) 226
NLRB 527, 524 [93 LRRM 1379]; Traub s Market (1973) 205 NLRB
787 [84 LRRM 1078]; Air Master Corporation, Etc. (1963) 142
NLRB 181, 186-7 [53 LRRM 1004]; Shea Chem cal Corporation
(1958) 121 NLRB 1027, 1029 [42 LRRM1486]; The VWhel and Conpany
(1958) 120 NLRB 814, 817 [42 LRRM 1054]; Novak Loggi ng Conpany
(1958) 119 NLRB 1573 [41 LRRM 1346].

Hi ggi ns I ndustries, Inc. (1964) 150 NLRB 106, 119 [58
LRRM 1059]; Ar Master Corporation, supra; Deluxe Meta
Furni ture Conpany (1958) 121 NLRB 995 [42 LRRM 147/0].

®*McKees Rocks Foodl and (1975) 216 NLRB 968, 972 [88 LRRM
1575] ;" Playskool, Inc. (1972) 195 NLRB 560 [79 LRRM 1507].

%p| ayskool, inc., supra, at 560.

18



The M dwest Piping doctrine is intended to

i npl enrent the [National Labor Rel ations]
Act's objective of assuring enployees the
right to select "representatives of their
own choosing." It prohibits an enployer
faced with conflicting Claifns from according
Such treatnent to one of the rivals as W I
grve Tt an 1 nproper advantage or ""
disadvantageé in its contest tof the

enpl oyees  favor. ™

A col orable claim of enployee support is sufficient to invoke

the M dwest Piping doctrine and the enployer neutrality it

demands.

PERB has a statutory obligation to restrain enployers and
enpl oyee organi zations from striking deals and negotiating
contracts when a question of representation exists. A
colorable claim to enpl oyee support raises a question of
representation, whether or not the |latecom ng challenger has
formally intervened pursuant to section 3544.1(b).*® Since
the facts here indicate that SEIU s continued organi zati onal
canpaign resulted in enployee support in additional job

classifications,1$9 | would find that the District's voluntary

Belleville News Denpbcrat, Inc. (1972) 195 NLRB 431, 436
[79 LRRM 1376].

8Section 3544.1(b) is set forth at note 7, supra.

190n Cctober 21, 1976, SEIU informed EERB, CSEA and the
District that it intended to introduce evidence of additional
support at the hearing scheduled for Novenber 22, 1976. Three
aut hori zation cards were included in the letter SEIU sent,
inplying its intention to invoke the "one card" rule. Forner
Board Rul e 33340 provided that:

The Board may allow an enpl oyee organization
which did not file a tinely request for
recognition or intervention to join the
hearing as a party provided:

(cont.)
19



recognition of CSEA interfered with the rights of its enpl oyees
and SEIU and gave unlawful support to CSEA.ZOIn addi tion, |
woul d find that CSEA violated sections 3543.6(a) and (b)?! by
unlawfully entering into a recognition agreenent wth the
District while a question of representation was pending before

PERB.

a8 5 8RS

(b) The application is acconpani ed by proof
of the support of at |east one enployee in
the unit described by the request or

i ntervention;

0SE|U alleged that the District's voluntary recognition
of CSEA viol ated sections 3543.5(a), (b) and (d), which provide:

It shall be unlawful for a public schoo
enpl oyer to:

(a) Inpose or threaten to inpose reprisals
on enpl oyees, to discrimnate or threaten to
di scri m nate agai nst enpl oyees, or otherw se
tointerfere wwth, restrain, or coerce

enpl oyees because of their exercise of
rights guaranteed by this chapter.

(b) Deny to enpl oyee organi zations rights
guaranteed to them by this chapter.

(d) Domnate or interfere with the formation
or admnistration of any enpl oyee

organi zation, or contribute financial or

ot her support to it, or in any way encourage
enpl oyees to join any organi zation in
preference to another.

Sect i ons 3543.6(a) and (b) provide that:

It shall be unlawful for an enpl oyee
organi zation to:

(a) Cause or attenpt to cause a public
school enployer to violate Section 3543.5.

(cont.)
20



If Board %ulé 3300022 is interpreted to condone
sleight-of-hand recognition agreements in spite of existing
questions of recognition, the purposes of the EERA are
undermined. This tension between the rule and the law23 ik
supposedly implements creates an intolerable situation in which
employers and employee organizations are effectively rewarded
for embracing each other, however prematurely, and no matter
what the employees themselves desire.

Accordingly, I dissent.

Jerilou Cossack Twohey, Member U
4

(b) Impose or threaten to impose reprisals
on employees, to discriminate or threaten to
discriminate against employees, or otherwise
to interfere with, restrain, or coerce
employees because of their exercise of
rights guaranteed by this chapter.

*’Board Rule 33000 provides that:

It is the policy of the Board to encourage
the persons covered by the Act to resolve
questions of representation by agreement
among themselves, provided such agreement is
not inconsistent with the purposes and
policies of the Act and the Board.

23Rules promulgated by administrative agencies may not be
incompatible with the purposes of the legislation they are
designed to implement. See e.g., Cooper v. Swoap (1974) 11
Cal. 3d 856, Be4 I[524 P, 2d 97, 115 Cal. Rptr. 4] (U.8. cert.
den. 419 U.S. 1022); Clean Air Constituency v. California State
Alir Resources Board (1974) 11 Cal. 3d 801, 815 [523 P. 2d 617,
114 cal. Rptr. 577]1; Morris v. Williams (1967) 67 Cal. 24 733,
748 [433 P. 2d 697, 63 Cal. Rptr. 689]; Whitcomb Hotel, Inc. V.
Cal. Emp. Com. (1944) 24 Ccal. 24 753, 757 [151 P. 24 233].

-
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EDUCATI ONAL EMPLOYMENT RELATI ONS BOARD
OF THE STATE OF CALI FORNI A

In the Matter of: )
SERVI CE EMPLOYES | NTERNATI CNAL UNI ON, Unfair Practice Case Nos.
Local 22, AFL-CQ S E 18

Charging Party, S8
VS, '

RO LINDA UNION SCHOOL DI STR CT,-
Respondent ,

and

R O LI NDA CHAPTER 290, CALIFCRNIA
SCHOOL EMPLOYEES ASSOC ATI ON,

Respondent o
)

ggearances: Van Bourg, Allen, \%inberg and Roger by Robert J. Bezemek for
rvice Enpl oyees International Union, Local 22, AFL-QQ Robert S

Shel bour ne, Deputy County Counsel, Sacramento County for Rio Linda

Uni on School District; Robert Blake, Attorney, for California School

Enpl oyees Associ ati on.

Before Terry Fillimn, Hearing Offi cer.
STATEMENT OF THE CASE
On Decenber 3, 1976, Service Enployees International Union, Local 22,
AFL-CI O (hereinafter Charging Party or Local 22) filed an unfair practice
charge against the Rio Linda Union School District (hereinafter Respondent
or District) allegingviolations of Sections 3543.5(a), (b) and (d) of the
Educational Enpl oynent Rel ations Act (hereinafter EERA or Act).1

'Government Code Section 3540 et seq. All statutory citations are to
Governnent Code Sections unl eSS of hervi se not ed.



On Decenber 20, 1976, Charging Party filed an unfair practice charge
agai nst California School Enployees Association, Chapter 290 (hereinafter
Respondent or CSEA) alleging violation of Sections 3543.6(a) and (b) of
the Act.

Both charges arise fromthe same factual setting. The essence of
the charges is that the District violated the Act by granting recognition
to CSEA at a tine when both CSEA and Local 22 were conpeting for support.

The recognition occurred followi ng recei pt of an amendnent to CSEA' s

petition whereby the four job classifications covered by Local 22's
intervention petition were deleted fromCSEA's wal | -to-wall unit. The alleged
violation i s grounded upon the bases that: (1) the recognition occurred at an
i Ilegal meeting; (2) a question of representation was pending before the

EERB; (3) a representation hearingwas immnent; (4) the recognition was
notivated to avoid a hearing or election; (5) the recognition occurred in an

I nappropriate unit; and (6) that recognition occurred over the objection

of the Charging Party which had denonstrated a substantial interest in the
enpl oyees recogni zed and represented a majority of enployees in an appropriate
unit. Respondents filed answers denying that unfair practices had been
coomtted and specifically denying that the District was faced wth a real
question of representation outside of the petition filed by Local 22 for an
operations unit.

On Decenber 20, 1976, the Educational Enploynent Relations Board
(hereinafter EERB or Board) issued an order directing the Charging Party
to particularize the charges.

On January 6, 1977, Local 22 filed a consolidated particul arized

statenent of charges.



On January 21, 1977, the District filed an anended answer to the
particul arized charge.

On January 27, an informal conference was conducted but no
settlement was reached.

On March 2 and 3, 1977, a consolidated hearing was held in
Sacrarfento, California. CSEA failed to file an amended answer to the
particul arized charge prior to the date of the formal hearing. An
amended answer was filed at the commencement of the hearing. « All
parties participated in the hearing and were given full opportunity to
present written evidence and call wtnesses bearing on the i ssues.
Between April 11 and May 6, 1977, all parties filed post-hearing

briefs.

2At the hearing Local 22 noved to have all charges contained in the
particul ari zed statenent of charPes as agai nst CSEA be deened .
admtted because CSEA did not file an anended answer pursuant to EERB
rules. At the sane tine, both respondents noved to dismss the charge
on the basis that it does not assert that any violation of the

EERA or Board Rul es and Re?ul ations was commtted. Finally, CSEA
urged that if the dismssal was not granted, that the issue shoul d be
appeal ed immediately to the Board itself wthout continuing the hearing
pursuant to Cal. Admin. Code, Tit. 8, Section 35014."

The motion by Local 22 to have the charges in the particul arized
statement agai nst CSEA be deened adm tted was denied on the basis that
Cal. Admin. Code, Tit. 8, Section 35008 is discretionary and the Charging
Party made no show ng of prejudice should the |ate answer be accepted.
Sim arIK, the motions by both Respondents to dismss the charge

Wi thout heari ng'vvere denied. Anotion to appeal the denial of the
dismssal inmediately to the Board itself pursuant to Cal. Admn. Code,
Tit. 8, Section 32200 was not concurred in by the hearing officer.



Upon the entire record and fromobservations of wtnesses, the

hearing of fi cer makes the following findings and concl usi ons.

_ FINDINGS OF FACT
The parties stipul ated that Local 22 and CSEA are enpl oyee
organi zations within the meani ng of Section 3540. |(d) and Rio Li nda
Uni on School District is a public school enployer within the meaning

of Section 3540.1 (k). These stipulations are accepted w tholit inquiry.

The District is located in Sacramento Oounty,' California. It
enpl oys approxi mately 310 classified enpl oyees, including 48 operations
enpl oyees, 12 skilled crafts enployeesf 18 transportation enployees;
37 food service enployees, 141 instructional aides; and 54 clerica

enpl oyees.

~ Petitions for-Recognition (CSEA 'and'lnterventjon'(Loéél‘221
| Inlate February, 1976; Locél-22 began or gani zi ng cust odi ans,
gardeners and war ehousenmen in the District. |
During February and March, 1976, the District devel oped a program
to provide information to classified enpl oyees concerning the inplenenta-
tion of the Act. The programincluded the preparation and di ssem nation
of an informational brochure entitled, "Uncle Funky's Magic Book and
SB 160." The publication was previewed with representatives of CSEA
and the California Teachers Association to determ ne whether the
organi zations had any objections to proposed district presentations to staff.

| nformational meetings were conducted at each school during March, 1976.



I n an uncont ested-statenent, the superintendent stated that neither the
Anerican Federation of Teachers nor SEIU® participated in the meetings
because he had no know edge of any organizational activities within the
district by those two organizations.

On April 5, 1976, CEA filed arequest for recognitionwth the school
district for aunit including all classified enpl oyees, excluding management,
supervisory and confidential enployees and certain other |imted classes.

The showing of interest filed by CSEA anounted to approximately 96 percent of the
classified enployees in the proposed unit. OnApril 9, CSEAfiled an amended
request for recognitionin the broad classified unit, deleting short-termand
substitute enpl oyees fromits original petition.

On April 28, 1976, Local 22 filed an intervening request with the District
seeking recognition in an "operations unit" conposed of four job classifications:
custodi an, warehousenan, gardener and gardener/bus driver. The unit included
appr oxi m::\t ely 50 classified enpl oyees. Acconpanying the request was a petition
cont ai ni ng names and Si gnatufes of 16 classified enployees within the unit.

On May 11, 1976, the District filed an enployer's response with EERB
pursuant to Emergency Rule 30022 indicating its refusal to recognize either Local
22 or CSEA as the exclusive representative of its enployees. The District stated
that it (1) didnot doubt the appropriateness of the wall-to-wall unit sought by
CSEA, (2) did doubt the appropriateness of the Local 22 intervention and (3)

didnot desire arepresentation electi on. 44

Charging Party is a local affiliatedwith SElU.

‘Official notice is taken that EERB procedures require the processing of
representation, case disputes based upon the chronol ogical order of
reg{uests for recognition filed in eachregional office. Rio Linda case
S R-122 was schedul ed for hearing on Novenner 22, 1976. All parties
were notified of the pending hearing by witten notice served on

Cct ober 27, 1976. _



Local 22 Continued. Organi zi ng Af t er Filing Desdline

The record does not reveal any further activities by either

enpl oyee organization between April 28 and late June, 1976.
On June 17, Local 22 officials met with several enployees to

devel op a proposal to be submtted for school board consideration on

Jul'y 12, calling for salary increases and benefits for custodial

gar deni ng and war ehouse enpl oyees.  The proposal was submtted on

. June 30. OnJuly 12, a presentationwas made to the school board.

During July, Fat Hallahan, business representative for Local 22,
conducted two or three neetings in the maintenance shop, whichwere
attended by el ectricians, carpenters, maintenance men, bus drivers and
gar deners.

‘ On August 3, 1976, M. Hallahan forwarded a letter to M. WIliam
Mur chi son, personnel director of the Rio Linda School District, requeéting
information about classffied enpioyee job descriptions. Onthe sénE
date, Hallahan presented a letter to the Board of Education on behal f of
al |l classified enpl oyees relating to their concerns about salary and step
increases for the 1976-77 fiscal year.

On Sept enber 13, 1976, M. Hallahan again presented to the Schoo
Board sal ary proposals for all classified enpl oyees. Hallahan requested
the Board to grant an interi mwage increase to all classified enployees.
The Board declined, stating that it was waiting for EERB to set a

date for a hearing concerning the rival petitions.



On Septenber 17, District Superintendent Floratos responded to a form
questionnaire forwarded by the EERB Sacranento Regi onal Office supplying
certain information and clarification of the enployer decision which had been
filed earlier. He noted that at the tine the CSEA petition was filed,
approxi mately 217 classified enpl oyees were in the proposed unit. of
those, 98.7%signed CSEA authorization petitions. He also indicated that
the unit proposed by Local 22 included approximately 46 enpl oyees and
stated the district doubted the appropriateness of the "operations" unit
because it excluded stock-clerk, del i veryman, gardener/ mai nt enance man,
bus driver, head bus driver, assistant mechani ¢ and head mechanic.

Copies of the letter were served on Local 22 and CSEA.

Duri ng Septenbef,.Cbtober and Novenber, 1976, Hallahanmet with
cafeteria enpl oyees, operations enpl oyees, naintgngnce enpl oyees,
tyansportafion enpl gyees and instructional aides. During the meetings, he
di stributed authorizétion cards and explained to enpl oyees how they coul d
be represented i n separate negotiéfing units. During this period, severa
other classified enpioyees al so distributed Local 22 authorization cards.

Forty-seven signed authorization cards were returned to Pat Hal | ahan. >

30f the 47 cards, 45 wer e fromenpl oyees who work in operations, skilled
crafts, transportation and food services. The remaining 2 were fromaides..
Hvedthe4 cards were signed by custodians and duplicate the original
petition for intervention filed by Local 22. Considering the 40 remaining
aut horization cards, together with the 16 signatures on the original
petition for intervention, a total of 56 classified enployees expressed
Interest inLocal 22 by late Cctober, 1976.



At |east three witnesses—tarry Gordon, Dan MAl eer and Kathl een
Abbott—+estified that they were inforned that by signing SEIU cards
they wer e not committed to vote for SEIUbut were giventheright to

get an election. O the enployees who signed SEIUcards, angjority
had previously signed the CSEA petition.

Parties File Requests wit h-EERBPri or 't 0-Uni t ‘Det ermi nati on Heari ng

On Sept enber 17, Supéfi ntendent Floratos sent a letter to the EERB
Sacranento Regional Cffice requesting an advisory opinion regarding the
. legality of an enployee organization splitting a previously filed
petition for recognition into two separate requestg;.6
On Cctober 21, Local 22 sent a letter to the EERB Sacranento Office. In
the letter, Hallahan noted Local 22 had received a strong show ng of support
fromseveral groups of enployees in the Rio Linda District in addition to
those petitioned for on April 28. M. Hallahan requested perm ssion pursuant
Cal. Adnin. Code, Tit. 8, Section 333407 to introduce evidence on behal f

% No response was received per the policy of EERB not to render witten
~advisory opinions. Oal advice rendered by staff in an attenpt to
assist a party is inno manner bindi ng upon the Board itself when
adj udgi ng the sane facts in a disputed case.

"Section 33340 states: "Application To Join Hearing As AParty. The Board may..
al | ow an enpl oyee organizatton whi Ch drd not 111e a tinelry request for
recogni tion of “i ntervention tOtJ.O' n the hearing as a party provided:
(a) The enployee organi.zation files awitten applicationprior to the
comencenent of the hearing stati n? facts showing that it has an
interest inthe unit described in the request for recognition or an
i ntervention; and .
(b) The application is acconpanied by proof of the support of at |east
ong enpl oyee in the unit describéd by the request or intervention;
an -
(c) The Board determnes that the enployee organization has a substantial
interest in the case and wi |l not unduly inpede the proceeding.




of three additional proposed units of enployees at the future unit
determnation hearing. The units included skilled crafts/maintenance,
food services and transportation. Attached to the request was one
aut hori zation card froman enployee in each of the proposed units.
Local 22 stated that it was prepared to demonstrate a sufficient show ng
of interest in these units at the unit determnation hearing and to
qualify eventual |y to be on the ballot for elections in those units
if the units were deemed appropriate by the Board. Copies of the letter
were sent to the District and CSEA A single page petition signed by ten
mai nt enance and operations enployees indicating their interest in being
represented in a separate unit was attached to the letter.®

On Cctober 27, 1976, the EERB issued a Notice of Hearing and prehearing
conference in case SR-122. The hearing was schedul ed to be hel d on |
Novenber 22, 1976.
Local 22 Prepares to Contend for Additional Enpl oyees

During |ate Cctober and early Novenber, both organi zations stepped
up their representation canmpaigns. On Novenber 10, Hallahan met with
W iamMirchison to obtain information fromthe District in order to
al lowLocal 22 to prepare for the upcon ng EERB heari ng.
During the meetings, Hallahan reaffirmed Local 22's intent as stated
inits Cctober 21 letter to argue on behal f of negotiating units different

than that proposed by their intervention; namely, a maintenance and

8 Novenber 3, Hal | ahan delivered to the EERB Sacranento Regional Office
three additional pages of a petition signed by District enpl oyees requesting
an election.. -~~~ -0- - :



operations unit, a transportation unit, a food services unit, and an aides:
unit. Local 22 requested a variety of information regarding these
classified enpl oyees. |

In a hearsay statenent, Hallahan attributed a statement to Mirchison that
he saw a justification for a separate unit of blue collar enployees,
speci fical Iy mai ntenance and operations. Further, Hal | ahan rel ated that
Murchi son stated he was aware that Local 22 had quite a bhit of union
activity anong the different units and he had not heard or seen anything
"Vof' CEA and the-District wondered why they had not been out. He
specul ated that CEA and Local 22 had cut a deal and that CEA was goi ng
to back out of the District. Mirchison on the other hand testified that

he referred to what CSEA mght do statew de and his statements did not relate

ety i rectly to the Rio Linda Uni on School District. Wile the hearsay

statement infers a Drstrict position as to the appropriaténess of the
operations unit, it is unsupported by other evidence and is contradicted
by the District's official positionon the units. °%

On Novenber 12, 1976, a meeting of classified enployees whs hel d
at the Frontier School. The nmeeting was called by Floratos to discuss
the EERA.  Approxi.mately 18 enployees attended. During the neeting,
Floratos explained the District's position that instructional aides shoul d
not be represented in a separate unit and only one organization had
petitioned to represent aides. Hallahan was bresent and stated that in

view of Pittsburgh Unified School District (EERB Decision No.3

%8 Cal. Adm Code 35026 allows inclusion of hearsa. evi dence but will not
al | owunconfirned hearsay to formthe basis of a finding of fact unless
admssible incivil court.
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Cctober 14, 1976) it was possible for aides to be represented in a separate
negotiating unit. He further explained that Local 22 woul d be arguing on
behal f of various units at the EERB hearing. Two aides filed authorization
cards wi th Hal [ ahan.

During the week of Novenber 15, Robert Shel bourne, counsel for the
District, telephoned Hallahan to discuss possibilities for settlenent of
the case. Shel borne asked whether Local 22 woul d agree to two negotiating
units: the custodial unit as filed for by Local 22 and a residual unit.
Hal | ahan notified Shel bourne that Local 22 wanted to argue on behal f of
separate units at the hearing.

On Novenber 18, a joint neeting was conducted by Local 22 and CSEA
at the_H 0 Linda School. Hallahan represented Local 22 and Ron MGhee
represent ed CSEA before approxinately 40 classified enployees. During the
neeting, Hallahan stated that Local 22 supported the concept of separate.
units as opposed to awall-to-wall unit which CSEA supported. On the
same day, the two individuals al so conducted a debate at the maintenance
shop wher e mai nt enance enpl oyees were present.

Enpl oyer Accepts CSEA Amended Unit ‘Petition

I'n an uncontradi cted hearsay statement, Ted Costa, a forner CSEA
fieldrepresentative, testified that Eva MLain, the assistant field
dirrector for the Sacramento Office of CSEA, told himthat she had put
together a smaller wall-to-wall unit thanoriginally petitioned for in
Rio Linda and that it woul d be recogni zed by the school district and coul d
| effectively keep SEIU fromlitigating the unit question at a hearing
Littleweight is givento this testinony because scant evidence supported

the hearsay statement as to intent of either CSEA or the District.
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On Novenber 18, Eva McLain was contacted by the Board agent assigned
to conduct the hearing schedul ed for Novenber 22. The Board agent
i ndi cated that he was goi ng to be contacting all parties to the
hearing asking their consideration inworking out a consent agreenent due
to an EERB backfog of cases and the Board's inpetus toward settl|enent
wher ever possible. MLain responded to the Board agent that she woul d propose
a consent el ection agreenent for an operations unit as filed by Local 22 and
split the briginal CSEA petition to delete the 48 operations enpl oyees
covered by Local 22's intervention in order to gain exclusive recognition
for the remaining conprehensive unit. The sane day, MLain called
Superintendent Floratos and indicated her intent on behalf of CSEA to amend
thei r original request for recognition. Floratos indicated that he woul d
contact the District's counsel. Several hours |ater, M. Shel bourne
contact ed’MLai n and verified her conversationwith the superintendent.
The Board agent al so contacted Hal | ahan who stated that Local 22 woul d not

enter into a consent agreement on the units being consi dered

On Novenber 19 at approximately 8:30 a.m MlLai n hand- del i vered
an anended petitionto M. Floratos' secretary. In addition, she hand-
del ivered the amended petition to the Board agent and to the
Local 22 office. The anended petitionwas filed pursuant to Cal. Admn.
Code, Tit. 8, Section 33100(a). The anended petition was not posted by the

District.

It is found that McLain didnot propose or discuss setting up a
speci al Board neeting to act on the anmended petition during her phone
conversationwith M. Floratos on Novenber 18. During their phone
conservation, M. Floratos didnot indicate to MLain whether or not

the District woul d recogni ze CSEA's anended petition. Follow ng his

-12-



phone conversation with MLain, Floratos contacted the president of the
Board of Education on Novenber 18, requesting that the president call a
special neeting to consider the anticipated anended petition. The regul ar

bi -monthl'y meeting of the Board was schedul ed for Novenber 22. M. Floratos
testified that he requested the neeting to be called prior to actually
receiving the CSEA petition because it was his understanding follow ng

hi s conversation w th MLain and the conversation by M. Shel bourne and
MLain that the amended petition would be filed prior to Saturday November 20,
the date proposed for the special Board neeting. No facts are found to
contradict this testinony. MLain stated to Shel bourne during their
conversation that the amended petition would be filed in the superintendent's

office early the morning of Novenmber 19.

On the sane morning (Novenber 19) that M's. MlLain filed the amended
CSEA petitionwith the District, Hallahanwas meetingw th M. Mirchison at the
District office. Floratos called Hallahan into his office to explain to him
that a Board meeting had been called for the next day to consider the proposed
amendment by CSEA. Hal | ahan protested, explaining that it was an effort to
circunvent the entire process regarding the unit determnation hearing, especially
since the hearing was schedul ed for the follow ng Mnday. He also stated

that it was an obvious effort to block Local 22 fromarguing on behal f of
other units at the hearing and to prevent enpl oyees fromvoting in separate
units. Floratos stated that he believed the anended petition was |awf ul
and coul d be rightfully considered by the School Board.

Floratos testified that the notice of the special Board nmeeting
was posted at all school |ocations on Novenber 19. The School Board met

in special hearing on Novermber 20 to consider recognizing CSEAin a
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conprehensi ve unit excluding those job descriptions originally filed for
by Local 22 inits intervention. Approximately 50 enployees were in
attendance. Five or six enployees spoke in favor of having an el ection
followng a unit hearing and agai nst the proposed Board action. Hallahan
spoke agai nst the notion and he] d up a stack of authorization cards

I ndi cating that nunerous enpl oyees, nanely naintenance, transportation,
cafeteria and ai des wanted the opportunity for an election. The

aut horization cards were neither presented nor shown to the Board.

Eva McLain spoke for CSEA and nentioned that 98 percent' of the classified enployees
had si gned the CSEA petition. Hallahan indicated that of the 98 percent, many
had al so signed cards of Local 22. Follow ng the discussion, the School
Boar d vot ed unani mously to approve the anended CSEA petition to

recogni ze the anmended unit.

District Executes Contract with CSEA

On Novenber 22, the parties attended the schedul ed EERB hearing
and informed the hearing officer that a voluntary recognition had
occurred pursuant to the amended petition filedw th the EERB on
Novenber 19. At that time, CSEA proposed that the hearing officer
bring the parties together to conduct a consent election in the
remaining operations unit. SEIUrefused and indicated its intent to
file anunfair practice conplaint. Based upon the previous events,
the hearing officer didnot open the record and submtted the case
back to the regional director.

The hearing officer apprised Local 22 of its right to file an appeal
of his inaction to the Sacranento Regional Director. On Decenber 2,
counsel for Local 22 filed anotion to proceed to hearingw th the
Sacranento Regional Director. OnJanuary 11, 1977, Local 22 filed

another letter wth the Regional Director relating to the same subject.
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The regi onal office took no action. No appeals were filedwith the
Board itself.

Subsequent to Novenber 20, SEIU continued organizing, conducted
addi tional meetings, and solicited support frommaintenance, transportation,
operations and cafeteria enployees. As of the date of the hearing, no -
request was nade by Local 22 for voluntary recognition of its operations
unit nor has CSEA requested recognition. No consent election agreenent has
been requested. Fol | owi ng recognition, CSEA and the District executed a
contract. Benefits under this contract have been extended to classified
enpl oyees except those covered by thé Local 22 proposed operations unit.

| SSUES

A Charges Against the District

DidtheDistrict'svoluntary recognition of CSEA as the exclusive

representative of the conprehensive unit excluding operations enpl oyees:

1. Contribute unlawful support to CSEA (or encourage enpl oyees to
join CSEAin preference to Local 22) in violation of Section 3543.5(d)
of the Act; or

2. Deny Local 22 its rights guaranteed by the Act in violation of
Section 3543.5(b); or

3. Interferewth, restrain or coerce enployees because of their
exerci se of rights under the Act inviolation of Section 3543.5(a).

The above issues may be resol ved only upon determnation of the

fol | owi ng subi ssues.

a. Didthe enployer's recognition occur at a tine when activities
by Local 22 raised a real question of representation?

(1) Does the NLRB precedent under M dwest Piping Co.
and simlar cases apply with equal Torce in determning
when a "question concerning representation” exists
under the EERA?
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b. s the recognition given to preclude Local 22 from
participating at the schedul ed EERB hearing or election? |

Cc. \Was the recognition granted to one of two conpeting |abor
organi zations in a presunptively inappropriate unit? If so, what is the
~appropriate remedy?

d. Was recognition granted to a | abor organization which did
not have an uncoerced majority support in the unit recognized?

e. \as the recognition acconplished at an illegally called
School Board meeting? |f so, what is the appropriate remedy?
B. Charges Agai nst CSEA

1. Did CSEA cause or attenpt to cause the District to violate
Section 3543.5(a), (b) and (d) inviolation of Section 3543.6(a).

2. DidCSEA interfere with, restrain, or coerce enployees because
of their exercise of rights guaranteed by the statute in violation
of Section 3543.6(h).

The issues relating to the charges agai nst CSEA may be resol ved
only upon the resolution of the same subissues underl|ying the charges
against the District.

CONCLUSI ONS

Al though extensive testinony was taken in this matter, the ultimte
conclusion.as to whether unfair practices have occurred will rest primarily
upon interpretation of procedural rules, and established fundanmenta
policy as wel | as cumulative facts. However, because of the
abundance of facts, a summarized version of the relevant facts and
laws is presented. The conclusions of law as to each allegation are made

with the follow ng sunmary in mnd:
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1. CSEAfiled a petition supported by an uncontested at |east 50 percent
support in a conprehensive classified unit in accordance with Sebtion 3544 and
Cal . Admin. Code, Tit. 8, Section 33050.

2. Local 22 filed an intervention in an operations unit which covered a
portion of the unit petitioned for by CSEA  The intervention was acconpani ed
by an uncontested "at |east 30 percent" show ng of support and was tinely
filed pursuant to Section 3544.1(b) and Cal. Admn. Code, Tit. 8, Section 33070.

3. The District didnot recognize either unit petitioned for at the tine
it filed an enpl oyer's decision on May 11, 1976, pursuant to Cal. Admn.

Code, Tit. 8, Section 30022.

4. Approximately 7 months transpired between the enpl oyee organizations
request for recognition and intervention and the date of the schedul ed EERB
hearing to resolve the unit dispute

5. Oficial noticeis takenthat Cal. Admn. Code, Tit. 8, Section 33100(b)
extended an opportunity to Local 22 to anend its original intervention to add

additional job classifications only up to the date of the enployer decision
(May 11).

6. Vhile nosuch interpretation hégvbé;h naae by the EERB, it will be.
assunmed that Cal. Admn. Code, Tit. 8, Section 33340 does allowa party or
prospective party to expand its original request or to proposé newunits with
the approval of the hearing officer once an EERB hearing conmences (hearing
schedul ed for Novenber 22) .

7. Local 22 did continue organi zing addi tional enpl oyees subsequent
to April 28 in anticipation of proposing additional negotiating units at a

future EERB heari ng.

8. Both CSEA and the District knewat |east by Cctober 21 of Local 22's
proposed actions at the prospective EERB hearing.
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9. Local 22 obtained signed authorization cards fromapproxi nmately
40 enpl oyees injob classifications outsidetitle uni't covered by its
original intervention (an operations unit). The organization had at
| east one signed authorization card fromenpl oyees within the maintenance,

food services and transportation groupings.

10. Oficial noticeis takenthat Cal. Admn. Code, Tit. 8, Section 33100(3)
al | ows anmendnents of a petition to correct errors or to delete job
positions at any tinme prior to the comrencenent of a representation
hearing. No posting is required.

11. CSEA anended its original petitioninto two petitions; i.e., an
operations unit identical to Local 22's petition and a residual unit,
purportedly under the authority of Cal. Admn. Code, Tit. 8, Section 33100(a).

12. At a specially calledneeting, the District granted recognition
inthe residual unit onthe basis that no existing intervention covered any
positions overlappingw th the anended unit. The recognition was granted
I medi ately prior to the.scheduled EERB hearing over the protests of
Local 22.

13. The record contains no show ng of hostile notive on the part of
either the District or CSEA to deprive Local 22 fromparticipating in
an EERB heari ng.

14, CSEA and the District executed a contract for the enployees in
~ the unit recogni zed.

15. No EERB hearing was held. No disposition of the enployees in
the operations unit covered by the Local 22 intervention had occurred

at the close of the hearing.
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CONCLUSI ONS OF LAW

The Charges Agai nst the District
1. Section 3543.5(d)

The main thrust of the charge is that the District, by recognizing

CSEA in an anended unit at a time when the rival organizations were conpeting
for enpl oyees and'when an EERB representation case hearing had been
schedul ed, has assisted CSEA' s organi zational effort and has discrim nated
agai nst Local 22 inviolation of Section 3543.5(d) . Wile the
Charging Party does not specify which provisions are allegedy viol ated,
the first clauée of this section is not considered because there is no
allegation that the District was involved in the formation of CSEA or has
attenpted to influence managenment of the organization. Therefore, the
charge shall be linted to the second and third clauses of this section.
The second clause , "contribute financial or other support” , has
been found by the Board to be identical to Section 8(a)(2) of the
‘National Labor Relations Act, és anended (hereinafter the NLRA 29 USC 141
et. seq.) (See San Juan USD, EERB Decision No. 12, at page §,9.)
The third clause appears to be sonewhat simlar to Section 8(a) (3)

of the NLRA, as anended. ™

1019500t on 3543. 5(d) provides: "It shall be unlawful for public schoo
enpl oyer to domnate or interfere with the formation or admnistration
of any enpl oyee organization, or contribute financial or other support
to it or in any way encourage enplOyEES t0 j0in any organfzation In
preference to another.  (enphasis added)-.

USection 8(a)(3) (29 USC Section 158 (a)(3)) provides in part" ...by
discrimnation inregard to hire or tenure of enployment or any term
or condition of enploynent to encourage or di scourage menbership in
any | abor organization..."
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In its early decisions the EERB determ ned that where provisions
of federal labor legislation are parallel to the Act, the use of the
federal statutes and decisions arising therefromto interpret identical
provisions is desirable. 12

Local 22 supports its claimwith a plethora of NLRB cases
emanating fromthe [Mdwest Piping Co., Inc. 63 NLRB 1060, 17

LRRM 40 (1945) ], which hol ds that an enployer is required to maintain

strict neutrality when a question concerning representation is pending
“between two rival |abor organizations.

Respondent District counters that recognitionwas granted to
CSEA strictly according to EERB procedural requirements, at a time when
no question concerning representation existed as to the anended unit.
Bot h Respondents further contend that "The Federal Labor Managenent Act
I's so fundamental |y different fromthe Rodda Act and its inplenmenting
| regul ations that cases construing it and NLRB regul ations are of no

precedent val ue what soever."

At this point, consideration of the subissuesupon which Charging Party
rests its "unlawful support” clause is necessary.
A. Did the enployer's recognition occur at a tine when a "real question

concerning representation" existed? Does the Iine of National Labor Relations -

Board (NLRB) precedent under M dwest Piping apply with equal force in

det er mi ni ng when such a "question concerning representation" exists under

the gERA?

12Gee Los Angel es Unified School District, EERB Decision No. 5,
Novenber 24 1976. See also Firefighters Unionv. Gty of Vallejo,
12°C " 3rd 608, 87 LRRM2453 (1974).
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The sebohd question must be addressed first:

Local 22 asserts that the |ongstanding M dwest Piping doctrine

under the NLRB i s applicable to the present case. |n Mdwest Piping,

supra, the enployer recogni zed one of two rival unions which had filed

representation petitions with the NLRB. A contract was then negoti at ed.

The NLRB hel d that the contract viol ated enpl oyee rights under Section 7 and
enpl oyer obligations under Section 8(a)(|)l%o avoi d unl awful interference and
unl awf ul support under 8(a)(2) of the NLRA. Inits decision the Board

enphasi zed the excl usive jurisdiction of the NLRB over a case once conflicting

clainms of representationwere filed:

The Congress has clothed the Boardw th the excl usive power

to investigate and determne representatives for the purposes

of collective bargaining....Inthis case.. .the respondent elected
to disregard the orderly,representative procedure set up by the
Boar d under the Act for which both unions had heretofore
petitioned tie Board..., such' conduct by tie respondent
contravenes the letter and spirit of theAct.. .l1d., at 1070.

I n Shea Chemical Corp. [121 NLRB 1027, LRRM1486 (1958)]. the NLRB

-upheld and slightly refined M dwest Piping by stating:

Upon a presentation of a rival or conflictingclai mwhich raises

a real question concerning representation, an enployer many not go
so far as to bargain collectivelyw th tie incunbent (or any other)
uni on unl ess and unti| the question concerningrepresentation has
been settled by tie Board. (enphasis added) 1d. at 1028.

"Wiile certain aspects of tie Mdwest Piping doctrine have been disputed by

federal appellate courts, it is clear under tie NLRB that tie enpl oyer

shoul d not interfere once areal question concerning representation

BSection 3543.5(a) is the general corollary to 8(a)(l). See separate
di scussi on on page 39.

-21-



exi s,ts._14 The question is, then, when does a real question of representation
conmence.

The term"question of representation” is found in the NLRA, as
anended, and the EERA

While the termis not expressly defined by the NLRA generally a
question concerning representation arises when one of tow conpeting .

unions files a petitionw th the NLRB requesting an _ihvestigation

supported by the required showi ng of interest. Swift and Conpany,

128 NLRB 732, 46 LRRM 1381 (1960).% |
How does this procedural definition apply to the EERB? The

EERA al so recogni zes the existence of a "question of representation"

and a related "question of representation deened to exist" in Sections

3544.1 and 3544.7. The termis not defined. In addition, the EERB has

noted the existence of the termin San Juan Federation of Teachers (EERB

“Federal courts have disagreed on the grounds that nore substanti al
evi dence of enployee rivalry, than anere filing of a petition bg a
rival unionnust be shown. "(See NLRBvs. Swift and Co., 294 F 2d 285,
48 LRRM2699 Ca 3, 1961%; Pl ayskool, Inc. I95NCRB'560, 79 LRRM 1507
&1972); enf. denied 477 F , 2916 (CA7, 1973) supp. dec.
05 NLRB 1009, 84 LRRM1129 (1973). '

Charging Party correctly cites subsequent aut horit% indicating that the
M dwest Piping doctrine is still. upheld by the NNRBitself. ~
~VanelTa Bur CK Opel, 194 NLRBNo. 123, 79 LRRM1090 (1971); St._Louis
“I'ndependent Packing Co., 129 NLRB No. 71, 47 LRRM1021 (196077
enforced 291 F 2d 700, 48 LRRM 2469 (CA 7, 1961); Shreveport Packi nE.
Corp.. 196 NLRBNo. 78, 80 LRRM1206 (1972); Mbsler Safe Co., 209 NLRB
No. 6, 85 LRRM1392 (1974).

B Sec'® Sec 91c) (1) of the LMRA as anended, provides "Wenever apetition shall
have been filed, in accordance with such re?u! ations as prescribed..., the
Board shal | investigate such petition and if it has reasonabl e cause to
believe that a question of representation affecting COMMEICE exi

Frow de for a hearrng upon due noticCe. .. _ _

f the Board finds upon the record of the hearing that such a question of
representation exists, 1t shalT direct an election...”
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Deci sion No. 12, March 10, 1977) and i n Board Resol uti on No. 4 adopt ed
on May 18, 1976.%

Yet in attenpting to apply the NLRB definition under M dwest Piping, supra,

to the EERA several fundanental distinctions arise. Under the Act,
petitions by enpl oyee organizations calling for an election as well as
voluntary recognition are filed with the enployer rather than with the
agency. |In accordance with Board representation regul ations, an

organi zation may request EERB intervention only when the enpl oyer refuses
to recogni ze an uncontested najority organization or submt to the agency
~a dispute for investigation or election itself in an enployer's decision.
EERB rul es appear to allowa najority organization petitioning for a
large unit to reduce its proposal in order to elimnate a "question
concerni ng representation" previously existing while prohibiting

amnority organization fromexpanding upon its initial request.

Resol ution No. 4. states:

An enpl oyer may not graﬁt vol untary recognition where a question of

representation exists pursuant to a petition filed under Section 3544.5
of the Rodda Act.

7Cal . Admin. Code, Tit. 8, Section 33100 states:

(a) Avrequest for recognition or intervention may be anmended to correct
technical errors or todeletejob descriptions fromthe proposed unit at any
time prior to the conmencenent of a representation hearing. The anmendnent
shal | be filed with the enployer and concurrently served on any other
enpl oyee organi zation known to be seeking recognition. No posting shal
be required. :

(b) Arequest for recognition or intervention may be anended to add
new job descriptions to a proposed unit at any tine prior to receipt by
the requesting party of the enployer decision served pursuant to Section 33190..
The anendnent shall be filedw th the enployer. The enpl oyee organization
shal | concurrentIY send a copy of the amendnent to the regional office.
The enpl oyer shall post a notice of the amended request or intervention
wi thin three workdays follow ng receipt of the amendment. The notice shall
conformto the requirenents for posting an original request for recognition
or intervention and shall remain posted for 15 workdays. The deadline
for an enpl oyer decision regarding an anended request for recognition
shal | be extended pursuant to Section 33210.

(c) An enpl oyee organizatfon may not, by means of an anendnent, add

to or nodify the proof of support acconpanying a request for recognition
or intervention.
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Abrief analysis of several major differences between the NLRA and
~ the EERAmay assist in revealing why such procedural "inequities" may be
i ntentional.

The NLRB was established by federal legislation at a tinme when great
turnoi | and unrest existed between private sector enployers and enpl oyees.
Because of a general aninosity between parties, Congress established
a strong adm ni stering agency and provided that all [engthy organizing
. battles be resolved by free elections. Odinarily an enployer may
‘recogni ze an uncont est ed uni on displaying ngjority support. However, |
when the enployer, the unionor arival unionfiles apetitionwth the
NLRB and a probabl e "question concerning representation” is determned to

exist, the NLRB steps in and asserts exclusive control over the dispute.
Furthernore, even a recogni zed uni on often seeks the additional benefits
of being "certified" whichresults froma Board directed el ection

A probabl e "question concerning representation" is raised by the

filing of a petitionw th the NLRB which meets admnistrative -

requirenments. A petitfon claimng representation in a unit substantially

different froman appropriate unit does-not rai se the "question" and
may be dismssed. On the other hand, all unions are ailomed to freely
amend their proposed units and acconpanyi ng support during the course
of the NLRB proceedi ngs because the NLRB controls the represent ati-on
process and the ultimte outcome is determned by a free choice by the
enpl oyees. Only after the NLRB fully investigates the petition to
determne the status of the labor union, whether jurisdiction exists,
and whet her the uhit is appropriate, is a "real question concerning
representation” declared as a condition to setting the election. Once
the case is presented to the NLRBvirtually any party to the proceedings -
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which has an interest may appear on the ballot in an election despite

its small showing of interest during the organizing drive. Gven the
significance of the election process under the NLRA and the role of the

NLRB i n resol ving representation disputes, it is apparent that

vol untary recognition under the NLRA has taken a back seat to el ections

as a neani ngful conflict resolution device.

The EERA was established to strengthen a prior |abor relations |aw

for school enployees and to bring a nore bipartisan systemof participation
in establishing working conditions. Both the statute and EERB regul ations
strongly enphasize a rapid determnation of exclusive representation in
negotiating units through mutual settlenents between the parties

wi thout the agency's intervention. Section 3544 of the Act mandates |

vol untary recognition upon a majority demand unl ess certain circunstances

ari se. Sectfon 3544 and 3544.1 severely limt the time period during which
enpl oyee organi zations may conpete for exclusive representation once the
process comences. In addition the initial petitioner must present

majority support in order to file, thus setting up the strong |ikelihood

of voluntary recognition. Because the Act requires all union petitions

tobe filed directly with the enployer rather thanwith the agency, the

EERB has no opportunity to investigate and dismss petitions in
'presunptively inappropriate units. Once aninitial unit dispute is established
by the filing of an intervention, EERB rules specifically limt the
opportunities for the intervening union to change its position. (Cal. Admn. Code,
Tit. 8, Section 33100.) Furthernore, Board rules and decisions enphasize the
desirability of partial agreements between the parties w thout agency
intervention and encourage subm ssion of only issues directly in

dispute to the Board. Qher rules permt nutual withdrawal of a dispute

fromthe agency's processes at any tine when settlement occurs. Parties
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are free to fashion a consent agreement or voluntary recognition in any
unit whi ch does not violate the specific prohibitions of the EERA (such
as a unit containing both classified and certificated enpl oyees). Wen
the Board takes jurisdiction over an unsettled case and reviews the
proposed units in light of presunptively appropriate units, only those
parties with a substantial support fromenpl oyees are allowed on the
el ection ballot. Inmny cases this requirenent résults inavoluntary
recognition of the only union eligible for certification

Noting the distinctiveness of both the NLRB and the EERB and their
respective Acts, it is apparent that procedural and representation rights
nmust be interpreted according to each Act and the rules and regul ations o
that are generated therefrom The concept of "enployer neutrality in
deternmining an exclusive representative," as pronul-gated i n M dwest Piping,
may be adopted® or refined by the Board itself. Considering the
fundanental differences between the Acts (NLRA and EERA), federal case
IaMIinferpreting procedural definitions under the NLRA such as "when a
question concerning representation exists", is not found to be binding

on resolution of the issues at hand. Thus relevant federal case |aw
must be considered on a case by case basis to determne if it is applicable to

resolution of conflicts arising under the EERA

Two exanples serve to illustrate: (1) an enployer, confrontedwth
two validly filed overlapping petitions under the EERA, chooses to ignore
the intervention because the intervenor's show ng of interest is doubted
and grants voluntary recognition to the majority petition despite
over | appi ng proposed units, (2) on the eve of consent election the enploYer
grants recognition to the majority petitioner without concurrence by the
ot her pérty to the election. Inboth these situations, a "question

concerning representation" exists or is deemed to exist clearly under the

NLRA and t he EERA

'8 The EERB adopted its own doctrine in principle by Resolution No. 4.
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On the other hand, where the NLRA and EERA and the rul es
relating to filing and anending petitions reflect a philosophica
difference in purpose, the EERBis free toreject aliteral application

of NLRB precedent, such as M dwest Piping, which could require a finding

of "unlawful support."

Did a "real question concerning representation” exist under the EERA |
at the tinme of the voluntary recognition?

Seétion 3544.1(a) and (b) state that a "question of representation is
deened to exist" when the appropriateness of the unit is not in doubt
but either the enployer or arival union force an election. Section 3544.7
states that a "question of representation” exists after the Board has
det erm ned thé appropriate unit in a disputed case and prior to.scheduling
the el ection. Fromthese sections, which are conparable to NLRB
procedures, an actual question of representation is declared only after
all prelimnary issues are resolved and an election i s required.

The more difficult questionis to determne whether a threshold period
exi sts, anal ogous to the "probabl e question” raised when a petitionis

filedwith the NLRB, requiring enployer neutrality.

I'n San Juan Federation of Teachers, the Board noted that "vol untary
recognition nmay be defeated if an intervening enpl oyee organi zation
triggers a question concerning representation and an el ection by making

a 30 percent proof of support.” (sypra.. at p. 8)
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I't should be noted that the Board in San Juan faced an issue of an unfair
| abor practice charge stemmng froma district's providing a rival organizing
enpl oyee organi zation with access to proof of support petitions supplied by a
second organi zation. San Juan did not address directly the specific issues
of when a question of representation exists or when such a question may be
removed according to EERB Representation Rul es and Regul ati ons.

Board Resol ution No. 4 states that "An enployer may not grant voluntary
recognition where a question of representation exists pursuant to a petition
filed under Section 3544.5 of the Rodda Act." The Board Resol ution is recognized
but it is also recognized that such a resolution was generated out of a
di spute wherein two proposed units overlapped to cover the sanme enpl oyee
classifications and arose in a particular case where the show ng of interest of one
organi zation was unilaterally determned by the enployer rather than referring
the matter to EERB. Notwi thstanding that Board Resolution, it must also be
recogni zed that the Board has adopted certain rules and regulations applied in
representation disputes. It is not the position of this hearing officer to
create a novel policy declaring rights of the parties but instead to recognize
and give credence to existing rules, regulations and policies in order to
effect a dispute resolutionw thin the spirit and intent of the EERA

Thus credence nust be given to the policy favoring vol untary recognition
of enpl oyee organizations under appropriate circunstances and the right of
enpl oyee organi zations to renove their representation efforts fromdispute
by anmending their petitions to delete job descriptions.

Section 3544.1(b) allows an intervening enpl oyee organi zation only 15
work days follow ng the posting of anajority petition to challenge the

appropriateness of the unit or demand an election. Section 3544.1 and Cal. Adm n.
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Code, Tit. 8, Section 33070 requires each intervention to be acconpanied by at |east
30 percent support in the unit claimedto be appropriaté. In effect the intervenor
cannot expect voluntary recognition absent a significant support show ng,
but may bl ock recognition by a rival enployee organization until it can gain
adequat e enpl oyee support.

Clearly at the time avalidinterventionis filedwth the enployer
a col orabl e question of representation exists. Yet unlike the NLRA
it is apparent that the question exists only to the extent to which the
proposed intervening unit overlaps or conflicts with the original request
for representation

Cal. Admn. Code, Tit. 8, Section 33100(b) requires that an amendment to a
request for representation or intervention to add newjob classification be mde
prior to the filing of én enpl oyer's decision. Furthernore, Cal. Admn. Code,
Tit. 8, Section 33100(c) adds a further stabilizing effect by preventing the anendment
frombecom ng a vehicle for show ng of new support. In effect, these two subsections
freeze the proposed unit of the intervening enployee organization within a
fixed time frane. These two subsections effect that freezing in the spirit of
orderly and stable representation efforts of rival enployee organizations.

Wi le nothing inthe Act or the rules prevents an intervenor or any
or gani zation fron1continﬁing organizing efforts between the tine that interyention
is filed and a hearing is scheduled, the enployer and the ngjority petitioner
cannot be expected to anticipate an effort by an intervening organization to
expand its proposed unit to include additional enployees or additional enployee
units at the time of hearing. Such an expansion is effectively blocked by Cal
Adm n. Code, Tit. 8, Section 33100(b).
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Wienever a mjority petitioner claims awall-to-wall unit-is appropriate,
"it appears proper for an intervening organization to discuss the community

of interest of enployees other than those for which it has filed a petition
inorder to defeat the wall-to-wall unit. Pursuant to Cal. Admin. Code, Tit. 8,
Section 33340, it is assumed for this discussion that an intervenor or an outside
organi zation may enter the hearing if one is conducted, to propose an expansion
of its requested unit or to propose additional units. On the other hand, prior
to the commencenent of the hearing, t he i ntervening enpl oyee organi zati on has no
guarantee that the majority petitioner may not anend its original petition to

el imnate those positions covered by the intervention, and thereby elimnate the
col orabl e question concerning representation. Cal. Admn. Code, Tit. 8,

Section 33100(a) specifically authorizes an enpl oyee organization to anend its
petition todelete jobdescriptions prior to the representation hearing w thout any
posting réquirenent. An intervening organi zation has no reasonabl e expectancy of
representation of any enployees other than those covered inits intervention
petition once the time for its amendment has el apsed. To decide ot herwi se

woul d thwart the rigorous requirements of Section 3544.1 of the Act requiring
petitions supported by showi ng of interest and also thwart the express policy

of the Board to encourage settlenents anong parties. A probable question

of representation did exist, but only to the extent of conflict on the face

of petitions filedwith the enployer pursuant to EERBrules. In this case,

the fact that Local 22 notified the enployer inwiting in advance of the

hearing that it intended to expand its proposal at the hearing does not create

a question of representation as to those enployees not covered by its origina
intervention. Thus notice is ineffectual to resurrect the question once it

has been laidtorest pursuant to Cal. Adm Code, Tit. 8, Section 33100(a) and (D).



It appears that under the EERA the existence of a real question concerning
representation is not a fixed concept as it is under the NLRA.  Until an |
el ection is scheduled, a possibility exists that an enployer may lawful Iy
renove the "question" by granting recognition in an amended unit whi ch does

not overlap with any proposed intervening unit.

B. Didthe District recognize CSEA to preclude Local 22 fromparticipating

at the schedul ed EERB hearing or election in violation of the EERA?

An EERB hearing to resolve the pending unit dispute was schedul ed for
Novenber 22, 1976. The recognition occurred on Novenber 19. Having previously
found that Local 22 had no right under the Act to expand upon the unit
originally covered by its intervention and that the "col orabl e question of
representation” as to the unit recognized’by CSEAwas |awful l'y removed, the
organi zation had a right to participate in an EERB heari-ng only if a dispute
was in existence regarding its original "operations" unit.

The record indicates no proof of intent by the District to unlawfully
deny Local 22 the right tolitigate any issues regarding the unit proposed
by its intervention. |In fact, the record reflects no evidence that the
District induced CSEA to anend its petition in order to receive voluntary
recognition and end the rivalry between the organizations. Actually, it was
CSEA that initiated the amendment independent of the District. CSEA did seek
~advice fromthe District concerning its inpending amendnent and the District
sought |egal advice. However, such advice initiated at CSEA's request can

hardly be found to be inducement by the District.
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While it is recognized that the enployer resolution of a question of
representation while NLRB el ection proceedings are pending has not been

condoned (Vanel | a Bui ck, supra, Shreveport Packing Corp., supra, Mosler

Safe Co., supra), EERB election proceedings had not commenced here. Furthernore,

as noted above, a question concerning representation had been dispelled

by CSEA' s amendment pursuant to Cal. Admn. Code, Tit. 8, Section 33100(a).
Therefore, given the evidence, the District's recognition of CSEA was made

without anti-Local 22 animus and was within the rights of the District.

C. Is recognition granted to one of two conpeting |abor organizations
i nval i dated where the unit covered by the recognition is not presunptively
appropriate by Sweet vat er_Uni on H gh School District (EERB Decision No. 4,
Novenber 23, 1976) standards?

The Charging Party cites nunerous cases under the NLRB standing for
the proposition that when an enpl oyer recogni zes a union representing an
I nappropriate unit, the resultant contract may be challenged. In the
NLRA setting, the issuew |l normally arise when arival union files an
el ection petition during the termof a collective bargaining contract. Such
a contract ordinarily operates as a bar to the rival election petition.
However, when-the contract embraces an inappropriate unit the "contract
bar rule" is generally inapplicable. Mveable Partitions, Inc. |,

175 NLRB 915, 71 LRRM 1095 (1969).
The contract bar will still apply if the NLRB, in making a separate

bargai ning unit determnation, mght have found a different unit to be
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appropriate, so long as the unit recognized is not inherently inappropriate,
Ai rborne Freight Corp., 142 NLRB 873, 53 LRRM 1163 (1963). In Mnsanto Chenica
Co., 108 NLRB 870, 34 LRRM1099 (1954), the NLRB found that a contract that covered

a broad unit of production, maintenance workers and guards did not operate
as a bar since the unit violated the basic intent of Congress to exclude
guards fromunits containing other enployees. The NLRB has stated that the

contract bar rule is based upon Board policy consideration aimng to stablize

the relationship between enployers and enpl oyees,  Anerican Dywood Co.,
99 NLRB 78, 8030 LRRM 1028 (1952). Furthermore, in Airborne Freight (supra

at 874), the NLRB noted that the contract bar rul e woul d not be applied
without restraint where the result of application would disrupt industria
stability achi eved under an existing bargaining agr eenent . The NLRB has

no duty to police every contract voluntarily entered into by the parties to
determne if a different unit woul d be appropriate. ‘

It is apparent fromEERB practices regarding voluntary recognition and
consent elections that an undisputed recogni zed unit which does not inplicitly
violate the Rodda Act is considered an "appropriate unit." The sane standard
of appropriateness does not apply, of course, when the EERB is called upon
to determne unit appropriateness.

There is no "EERB policy that recognizing an enpl oyee organi zation
representing a presunptively inappropriate unit amounts to |ending "unlaw ul
support.” Considering established voluntary recognition practices by
enpl oyers under the EERA, appropriateness of a proposed unit is not at issue
where there is no overlap of job descriptions in two or more proposed units

requested by two or nmore conpeting enpl oyee organizations.
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As aresult of the District's recognition, CSEA becane the recognized

representative of a unit not presunptively appropriate by Sweetwater standards.

That recognition shoul d not be disturbed for want of presumed appropriat eness,
given the EERB' s policy favoring vol untary recognition

Since CSEA anended its original petition pursuant to Cal. Adm Code
Tit. 8, Section 33100(a) by deleting positions; It appears that organization
has no further standing to contest the appropriateness of the remaining
operations unit proposed by Local 22 unless it participates in a future
hearing as a new party under Rul e 33340 (joinder-of party).

Under the EERA and the California Admnistrative Code, there are no
provisions for subsequently determning the issue of appropriateness of a
unit during the period of recognition or duration of a contract once an
enpl oyee organi zati on has been validly recognized. Thus Local 22 can no
| onger chal | enge the appropriateness of CSEA's unit. This does not mean
that Local 22 is forever barred frombecomng the enployee representative
of the enployées Inquestion. Section 3544.1(c) of the Act notes that a
request for recognition hay be filed during a 30 day period prior to the
expiration of an existing contract between an enpl oyee organi zation and
the enployer or after a contract expires. The recognition petition may
be filed inaunit different fromthe recognized unit. Furthernore,
decertification is also available as a renedy pursuant to Cal. Adm Code

Sections 33240 and 33250.

D. Was the recognition granted to CSEAwhen it did not have an

uncoerced majority support in the unit?

Brhe Board in Sweetwater found three units of classified enployees to be
presunptivel y-appropriate: instructional aides (paraprofessionals),
of fice-clerical services; and operations-support.
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The issue of recognition based upon majority support is raisedin
two distinct contexts. First, under the NLRB, an enpl oyer commts an
unfair practice by recognizing and bargaining with an enpl oyee organi zation
when |ess than a mjority of the enpl oyees have authorized the enpl oyee
organi zation to represent themeven though the enpl oyer acted in good faith.
International Ladies Garment Wrkers Unionv. NLRB, 366 US 731, 48 LRRM 2251
(1961).

Second, the federal appellate courts have consistently overturned the
NLRB and have al | owed enpl oyers to defeat an unlawful support charge by
show ng that recognition occurred only when one rival enployee organization
actual Iy possessed a clear and uncoerced majority support. NLRBv. Peter Paul,
Inc., 467 F. 2d. 700, 80 LRRM3434 (CA9, 1972); Playskoal, Inc. v. NLRB,
477 F. 2d. 66, 82 LRRM2916 (CA 7, 1973). Under such circunstances, the courts

have found that no real question concerning representation exists to block
recognition despite thé filing of a reqdest for certification by a rival
enpl oyee organi zation. Hotel and‘Restaurant Enpl oyees, Local 5 v. InterQ.
Island Resorts Ltd., 507 F. 2d 411, 87 LRRM3075 (CA 9, 1974); cert. denied
422 US 1042, 89 LRRM2614 (1975).

In San Juan (supra), the EERB recognized the anal ogy between Section 8
(a)(2) of the NLRA and Section 3543.5(d) relating to unlaw ul support by

recognition of a mnority enployee organization. The Board held that an
enpl oyer must make the proof of support available upon request to any

enpl oyee organi zati on which desires to challenge a showi ng of interest.

CSEA testified that at the time of recognftion it had support of 98 percent
of those enployees in the amended unit. No evidence indicated that Local 22

chal | enged that representation
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However, the Charging Party argues that EERB procedures do not prohibit
enpl oyees from signing the aut hori zations for more than one enpl oyee
organi zation and, further, that NLRB precedent is applicable indicating that
dual cards do not denonstrate a clear and unanbi guous selection of a
representative. NLRBv. H -Tenp, 203 NLRB 119, 83 LRRM1473 (1973); enforced
503 F. 2d. 583 87 LRRM2437 (CA 7, 1974).

In H-Tenp, the NLRB excluded those cards supporting the majority

or gani zati on whi ch wer e si gned by enpl oyees who had al so signed cards for
the rival enployee organization. After discounting the dual cards, the NLRB
determned that the recognized organization |acked majority support.

School s are an industry where dual cards are accepted under EERB
procedur es.

In the present case uncontradicted testinony reveal ed that CSEA had
signed support from98 percent of all eligible classified enployees at the
time it filedits original petitionwth the enpl oyer. At the tinme of
recognition, CSEArepresented to the enployer that it had 98 percent
support in the unit recognized.® Local 22 presented no evidence to chall enge
the showing of support by CSEA. At the time of filing its intervention

petition, Local 22 submitted no showi ng of support for any enpl oyee outside

its operations unit. While Local 22 did eventually submt dua
aut hori zations covering 42 of the approxinmately 217 classified enpl oyees in
the anended CSEA unit recogni zed by the District, CSEAstill had a mgjority

even after discounting dual cards.

2%\hi | e CSEA's showi ng of supgort was not placed in evidence, no
testinony contradicted the 98 percent figure. Assumng 98 percent
of the 217 classified enpl oyees is 213, CSEA s uncontested support
anong al | the classified enpl oyees, excluding those 56 enpl oyees who
al so signed Local 22 authorizations, woul d be approxi mately 72 percent.
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Inits discretion the EERB has chosen to measure proof of support at the
time of initial filings under Section 3544 and 3544.1 unless an electionis
directed in a substantially different unit than originally filed for. At
the time of recognition, CSEA had an unchal | enged 98 percent support and
Local 22 had no official support in the unit.

Thus, the enpl oyer woul d not have contributed "unlawful support" by
recognizing CSEA in a unit not covered by Local 22's intervention upon a
clear showing of majority support, although Local 22's intervention in another
unit was pending. See NLRBv. Swift and Co., 294 F. 2d 285, 43 LRRM2699
(CA7, 1961). Furthermore, as noted by the NLRB, an enployer does not

conmt an unfair practice by extending recognition to one of two conpeting
enpl oyee organi zations where the rival enployee organization's clai mof

support is not a colorable claim Boys Market, Inc., 156 NLRB 105,

61 LRRM 1001 (1965). That col orabl e cl ai mmust rebresent an approxi mat e
majority of the enployees to be represented. Local 22's claimwase«-|ess than

col orabl e, especially noting CSEA's amended unit.

E. Did the enployer recognize one of two conpeting |abor organizations
at an illegal neeting of the Board of Trustees?

The Ral ph Brown Act (hereinafter the Brown Act - Covernment Code Section
54950 et seq.) provides that in order to hold special meetings, alegislative
body nust provide notice of such meetings 24 hours in advance of the special
neeting, Section 54956. A nenber of the public has recourse in the courts

in the event that the Brown Act will be or has been viol at ed.

But evenif it is found that a neeting of a |egislative body was held in
violation of the Brown Act, the action taken by that body woul d not be voi d.

The action woul d be valid.?

2gribingv. MIliard, 6 CA3d 470 (1970): See 42 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen. 61 (1963)
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Local 22 contends that the special School Board meeting held on Novenber 20,
1976, at which the Board recogni zed CSEA' s amended petition, was an unl awf ul
neeting and thus the actions taken by the Board are void.

The evidence indicates that the witten notice sent out to the Schoo
Board nenbers was dated the sane day as the date of the special meeting—
Novermber 20, 1976. However, the evidence is unclear as to when the notices
were delivered to the Board menbers. Even if the notice was not received
within the requisite period to neet the standards of the Brown Act, the courts
or the School Board would be the proper forumto bring up the matter of
al | eged special meeting violations. The EERB does not provide the proper
forumfor this dispute

In light of the foregoing discussion, it is found that the District did
not contribute "unlawful support” to CSEAin violation of Section 3543.5(d).

Consi dering the policies underlying the EERA and the structure established
by the EERB which limt organizing canpaigns to very short tine periods
it is found that an advantage may be given to the first union which rapidly
organi zes and gathers necessary support for recognition. While conpeting
unions are given equal opportunity to organize, a premumis placed on speed.
In this sense, EERB Rul es and Regul ations encourage rapid settlenent and pronote
stability in the educational industry. Mbreover, it cannot be said that the
enpl oyees are denied their rights to exercise their freedomof choice in
selecting their negotiating agent. Such a choice was nmade when the enpl oyees
covered by CSEA's petition effectively denonstrated majority support for that
union. Al though those enpl oyees did not exercise their freedomof choice at

the bal | ot box, they nevertheless exercised that right through their petitions.
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I't should be noted that this hearing officer does not propose to
change the EERB's policies and regulations. |f a change in the policies
and regulations is to be made, it is for the EERB to make this decision.

This decision conports with established policies and procedures.

2. Section 3543.5(a) and (b)

In this context the alleged violation of Local 22's rights pursuant
to Section 3543.5(b)% and the enpl oyees' rights under Section 3543.5(a)%
nust be considered a derivative of the "unlawful support” charge under
Section 3543. 5( d). Havi ng found no "unl awful support,” no derivative
violation is found.

B. Charge Agai nst CSEA

Did CSEA cause or attenpt to cause the District to violate Section
3543.5(a), (b) or (d) inviolation of Section 3543.6(a)?

As noted above, the District didnot conmt the alleged unfair practi ces.
Thus CSEA did not cause aviolation of Section 3543.5(a), (b) and (d).

No evidence was presented to support a finding that CSEA attenpted
to cause the District toviolate the Act. Furthernore, the evidence does

not indicate that CSEA intended such a result.

ZSaction 3543, 5(b) finds it an unfair practice to "deny enpl oyee organizations
rights guaranteed by this chapter.”

BSection 3543.5(a) finds it anunfair practice, inpart, to "interfere

with, restrain or coerce enployees because of their exercise of rights
guaranteed by this chapter."”
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Thus, it is found that CSEA did not violate Section 3543.6(a).

Did CSEA interferew th, restrain or coerce enpl oyees because of their
exerci se of rights guaranteed by the Act in violation of Section 3543.6(b)?

Bot h Section 3544.1 and Cal. Adm Code, Tit. 8, Sec. 33190(a) provide for
vol untary recognition of an enpl oyee organi zation by an enpl oyer. Such
recogni tion nust be supported by evidence that a majority of the enployees to
be represented have given their uncoerced support to the recognized organization.

I LGAUV. NLRB, 366 US 731, 48 LRRM2251 (1961). But when an enpl oyer

recognizes amnority union and a mnority uni on accepts such recognition,
bot h the enpl oyer and the uni on have conmtted unfair |abor practices. 1d. at

739. In ILGAJ, supra, the Suprene Court found that the enpl oyer viol ated

Section 8(a)(l) and 9(a)(2) of the NLRA and the union viol ated 8(b)(l)(a) of
t hat act. ' |

Section 3543.6(b) states that an enpl oyee organi zation conmts an
unfair | abor practice when it acts to:

"I npose or threaten to inpose reprisals on enpl oyees, to

discrimnate or threaten to discrimnate against enpl oyees,

or otherwise interferewith, restrain, or coerce enpl oyees

because of their exercise of rights..."

Section 8(b)(1)(a) of the NLRA closely resenbles the |atter part of
Section 3543.6(b) of the Act. Since the alleged violation by CSEA does
not reasonably bear on threatened or inposed reprisals nor on discrimnation,

it is found that Local 22's charges center on CSEA' s al |l eged coerci on,

- 2429 USC 158(b) (1) (a) inpertinent part states:
"It shall be an unfair labor practice for a [ abor organization or its
agents - .
(1) torestrainor coerce (A enployees in the exercise of the
rights guaranteed in section 7..."
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interferencewith or restraint of District enployees in the exercise of their
rights under the Act.  Thus the thrust of these alleged violations is that
when an enpl oyer recognizes a ninority enployee organization and that
enpl oyee organi zation accepts recognition, the enployees' right freely
to choose or reject negotiations or a particular enployee organization
s sacrificed. 2

In the instant case, CSEA had al ready secured the support of approximtely
98 percent of the enployees in its proposed wall-to-wall unit. After filing
its intervention petition, Local 22 exhibited its requisite 30 percent show ng
of support. Fromthe tinme of interventionuntil CSEA's recognition, Local 22
continued its recruitment efforts and eventual |y nustered the support of
approxi mately 56 enpl oyees. As noted above, the exclusion of Local 22's 56
enpl oyees fromCSEA s clained enpl oyees still give CSEA at |east 72 percent
support. Furthernore, the recruitment efforts of Local 22 plus its
communi cations al | eging support together were not enough to dispel the
evidence that CSEA still maintained a clear mpjority of support fromthe
enpl oyees in the proposed unit, as anmended. The anmendnent of CSEA's
originally proposed unit further removed fromdisputed status those
enpl oyees whose job classifications were within the overlapping units.
Thus the evidence supports a finding that CSEAwas recogni zed upon a show ng
that it maintained clear mgjority support and it accepted recognition under
those ci rcunmst ances. |

Therefore, it is found that CSEA did not violate Section 3542.6(a)
or (b).

23R. Gorman, Basic Text on Labor Law (1976), at 203.
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RECOMMENDED ORDER
The unfair practice charges filed by Local 22 are hereby dismissed.
Pursuant to 8 Cal. Adm. Code, Section 35029, this Recommendéd_Decision
and Order:shall become final on November 7, 1977, unless a party
files{a timely statement of exceptions. See Cal. Adm. Code, Tit. 8,
Section 35030.

Dated: October 27, 1977

Terry Filliman
Hearing Officer

-42-





